
Public Accounts Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 3 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 

Tuesday, 13 May 2014  

 

Meeting time: 

09.00 

 

For further information please contact:  

Fay Buckle 

Committee Clerk 

029 2089 8041 

Publicaccounts.comm@Wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 

 

 

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions (09:00)  

2 Papers to note (09:00) (Pages 1 - 2) 

3 Senior Management Pay: Evidence Session 6 (09:05-10:35)   

Research Brief 

  

Marie Rosenthal, County Clerk and Monitoring Officer, Cardiff Council 

  

Delyth Jones, Head of Law & Governance and Monitoring Officer, Conwy County 

Borough Council 

4 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public 

from the meeting for the following business: (10:35)   

Items 5, 6 & 7 

5 Senior Management Pay: Consideration of evidence received (10:35-

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



10:50)  

6 Management of Chronic Conditions: Consideration of the Welsh 

Governments response to the Wales Audit Office Report (10:50-10:55)   

PAC(4)-13-14(paper 1) 

7 The Welsh Government's location strategy: Consideration of the Welsh 

Government's response to the Wales Audit Office Report (10:55-11:00)   

PAC(4)-13-14(paper 2) 

  



 

Public Accounts Committee 

 

Meeting Venue: Committee Room 3 - Senedd 
 

 

  
Meeting date:  Tuesday, 6 May 2014 

 

  
Meeting time:  09.00 - 10.32 

 

  This meeting can be viewed on Senedd TV at: 

http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=en_400000_06_05_2014&t=0&l=en 

 

 

 

Concise Minutes: 

 

   
Assembly Members:  Darren Millar AM (Chair) 

Jocelyn Davies AM (In place of Alun Ffred Jones AM) 

William Graham AM 

Mike Hedges AM 

Julie Morgan AM 

Jenny Rathbone AM 

Aled Roberts AM 

Sandy Mewies AM 

 

  

   
Witnesses:  Mark Jones, Chair, Colegau Cymru 

Huw Vaughan Thomas, Auditor General for Wales, Wales 

Audit Office 

 

  

   
Committee Staff:  Meriel Singleton (Second Clerk) 

Claire Griffiths (Deputy Clerk) 

Joanest Jackson (Legal Advisor) 

 

  

 

 Introductions, apologies and substitutions  
1.1       The Chair welcomed the Members to Committee. 

1.2       Apologies were received from Alun Ffred Jones. Jocelyn Davies substituted. 

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2

http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=en_400000_06_05_2014&t=0&l=en


 

 Papers to note  

2.1 The papers were noted. 

 

 Health Finances 2012-13 and Beyond: Consideration of response from 

the Welsh Government  

3.1 The Committee considered the response from the Welsh Government and noted 

that it did not provide information on the cost of pay protection in NHS Wales 

(Recommendation 12).  Members asked the Auditor General to look at this issue in the 

further work he has undertaken to do.   

 

 Senior Management Pay: Evidence Session 5  

4.1 The Committee questioned Mark Jones,  Principal Gower College & Chair Colegau 

Cymru, on Senior Management Pay. 

4.2 Mark Jones agreed to send the following information: 

  

       Further detail on how the figures for St David’s Catholic College and Coleg 

Gwent were reached 

       What constitutes a ‘benefit in kind’ 

       Latest benchmark report from the Association of Colleges  

 

 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public 

from the meeting for the following business:  

5.1 The motion was agreed. 

 

 Senior Management Pay: Consideration of evidence received  

6.1 Members considered the evidence received. 

6.2 Members asked that the Research Service and /or the WAO consider whether the 

merging of colleges has led to a step up in principals’s pay. 

 

 Covering Teachers’ Absence: Consideration of draft report  

7.1 Subject to a minor change, Members agreed the draft report. 

 

Pack Page 2



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 3

Agenda Item 3By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 18

By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42



Pack Page 82

Agenda Item 6



Pack Page 83



Pack Page 84



Pack Page 85



1 

 

Wales Audit Office – An Update Report on Management of Chronic Conditions in Wales –  

Welsh Government Response to the Recommendations 
 

Planning 

 Recommendation 

R1 NHS bodies that have a clear vision for transforming chronic condition services but the vision is not always supported by a detailed plan 
setting out how the intended shift of resources from hospital to the community sector will be achieved.  We recommend that Health 
Boards: 

 Develop fully costed plans that identify the level of investment required to rebalance services towards the community. 

 Set out how the intended shift of resources to the community sector will be achieved in practice, bringing together the various 
different policy and strategy requirements; and  

 Ensure interdependencies with other strategic and operational priorities, like unscheduled care, are adequately cross-referenced or 
reflected in a single integrated plan. 

WG Response 
Accept 

Health Boards are developing 3 year Integrated Medium Term Plans for 2014-15.  The Welsh Government’s Planning Framework, 
which provided guidance for these plans, re-asserts the requirement for shifting the leadership focus and resources invested towards 
primary and community care, the need for further improvement in preventing and managing chronic conditions  and implementing local 
plans for the suite of chronic condition specific National Delivery Plans. 
 
Health Board plans will not be approved unless assurances can be gained that significant change will be delivered at scale and pace 
over the next 3 years through more locally led integrated planning and delivery.  
 
Increasingly, the 64 clusters of GP practices, established to plan, co-ordinate and deliver effective care closer to home for their 
communities, will develop their own service development plans. These plans will be informed by an analysis of workforce numbers and 
skills needed to deliver further change and improvement.  The first of these cluster level service development plans are due by 
September 2014 and as cluster level working matures overtime, it will increasingly inform Health Board 3 year plans.  
 
The NHS Planning Framework will be refreshed on an annual basis.  For the 2014-15 refresh, there is opportunity to reflect these 
recommendations, reinforcing again the need for plans to be explicit and evidencing the shift in the model of care and 
interdependencies with other plans.  

  

P
ack P

age 86



2 

 

 Recommendation 

R2 Local workforce plans need to be strengthened to reflect the required shift in service provision from acute to primary and community 
settings and increasing expectations around service integration for health and social care.  We recommend that Health Boards: 

 Map the capacity and capability of their current community workforce to inform workforce plans and to match resources to need; 

 Work with the Welsh Government and local GP practices to agree mechanisms for collecting and sharing information on the 
wider primary care workforce in terms of numbers, skills and future workforce needs; and 

 Work with local government partners to identify the workforce number and skills needed to deliver integrated services. 
 
 
WG Response 
Accept 
 
The Health Board 3 year Integrated Medium Term Plans for 2014-15 must include workforce needs across the whole system, including 
delivering integrated care at or close to home.  To inform the planning process, the Welsh Government’s Planning Framework also 
reinforces the need for Health Boards to engage with other stakeholders / partners providing care within the community, including local 
authorities and the third and independent sectors.  
 
 As they mature, GP clusters, through their service development plans, provide a means of understanding the workforce members and 
skills needed to support the shift in the balance of care more towards primary and community care. . 
 

 

P
ack P

age 87



3 

 

Identifying patients at risk of unplanned admissions 

 Recommendation 

R3 Health boards, working with GP practices, have been developing new ways to identify individuals most at risk of unplanned admission.  
PRISM is one such tool to help with this process but its evaluation and wider roll-out has not yet happened.  It is important that there is a 
systematic approach to risk stratification across Wales and we recommend that the Welsh Government, working with NWIS and health 
boards: 

 Evaluate the relative success of the different approaches to risk stratification currently being used and agree a mechanism to 
share good practice. 

 Expedite the evaluation of PRISM; and 

 Agree an all-Wales set of requirement for information governance in relation to storing and sharing information obtained from risk 
stratification. 

 
WG Response 
Accept in part 
 
The Welsh Government has no plans to mandate the use of the risk stratification tool known as PRISM over other tools. The evaluation 
of PRISM is independent and it is not appropriate for the Welsh Government to attempt to influence the timing of this. Officials will, 
however, discuss with Health Boards the need for a nationally led evaluation of the relative success of the different approaches to risk 
stratification currently being used and how best to share good practices.  

 
Nearly 60 organisations are signed up to the Wales Accord, which provides an information sharing framework for organisations directly 
concerned with the health, education, safety, crime prevention and social well being of people in Wales. In particular, it concerns those 
organisations that hold information about individuals and who may consider it appropriate or necessary to share that information with 
others in a lawful and intelligent way. Further work is now in the planning stage to look at the practical aspects of information sharing 
using integrated care systems. 
 

 

  

P
ack P

age 88



4 

 

 Recommendation 

R4 The 2013-14 GMS contract requires GPs to identify the proportion of their patients most at risk of an unplanned contact with services 
and who would benefit from review and active management.  We recommend that: 

 Health Boards work with clusters of GP practices to agree mechanisms for sharing anonymised information on the needs of 
patients identified as most at risk of an unplanned contact in order to identify gaps in service provision and strengthen service 
planning and monitoring. 

 Health Boards regularly publicise the range of community services available and how these can be accessed to help GPs 
actively manage patients with chronic conditions more effectively in the community and how to avoid unnecessary hospital 
referrals or admissions and to facilitate timely hospital discharge. 

  
WG Response 
Accept 
 
To date, GP cluster analyses have focussed on the identification of common issues arising from the delivery of care to patients at most 
risk of hospital admission to inform the development of locals services to meet people’s  needs more appropriately closer to home. This 
work will be built on further through the GP cluster service development plans being prepared for September 2014.  
 
Health Boards have made varying progress in developing communication hubs and local Directories of Services.  As they mature, GP 
clusters, through their service development plans, provide a means of developing and publicising these arrangements further.  

 

P
ack P

age 89



5 

 

Support for self-care and education programmes 

 Recommendation 

R5 The uptake and completion of programmes designed to educate patients and support self-care is still poor.  We recommend that Health 
Boards: 

 Work to understand the reasons for non-attendance on patient education programmes in order to maximise uptake and improve 
the cost-effectiveness of the programme; 

 Actively promote education programmes for patients and support for self-care amongst the health and social care professionals 
in regular and frequent contact with patients and service users; 

 Continue to seek alternative ways to support patients to self-care by ensuring patient education and access to self-care 
information are an integral part of the services provided; and 

 Develop indicators to measure the impact of these programmes on individual patient experience and outcomes.  
 
 
WG Response 
Accept 
 
An individual’s information needs and how to meet them, which might include structured self care education, are discussed with 
professionals to agree goals and actions through a care plan.  People who attend self care education programmes discuss the benefits 
with their professional as part of their care plan review.  
 
As they mature, GP cluster service development plans will improve care planning and the optimal uptake of self care education 
programmes. These plans will be informed by a very local and sensitive assessment of the needs of the local community, capable of 
understanding local patterns of non completion of programmes.  
 
The outcome of the 2014 National Survey will tell us how well informed and supported people with long term conditions report feeling. 
Welsh Government and Health Boards will continue to monitor the reduction in emergency admissions and readmissions with in a year 
for the main 8 chronic conditions.  
 

 

P
ack P

age 90



6 

 

Co-ordinating services 

 Recommendation 

R6 Responsibility for identifying and coordinating services for patients at risk of unplanned admissions or those who would benefit from 
active case management is unclear given that many community services provide the same or similar services to these groups of 
patients.  We recommend that Health Boards, working with GPs, should simplify, coordinate and direct resources towards those patients 
who would benefit most. 
  
WG Response 
Accept  
 
People who have complex needs and are at increased risk may benefit from being formally assigned with a named lead professional or 
care co-ordinator (sometimes called a key worker). This is discussed and agreed as part of the process for agreeing goals, actions and 
care with that individual.   
 
As they mature, GP clusters, through their service development plans, provide a means of planning and delivering improved, better co-
ordinated and better directed resources and care for people with complex needs. 

 

Information 

 Recommendation 

R7 Information systems to record community care episodes for individual patients; to share clinical records and care plans or to provide 
good quality information for monitoring community services and performance in relation to outcomes of care are currently inadequate or 
non-existent.  We recommend that the Welsh Government: 

 Examines the feasibility of introducing a community care episode record, similar to the inpatient episode record; and 

 Complete the procurement of the Community Care Information Solution and ensure that the benefits of using this system are 
publicised across NHS Wales. 

 
WG Response 
Accept 
 
The technical architecture of the Community Care Information Solution system will enable a person-centred record of care that can be 
shared between health and social care, to support the increasing planning and delivery of care in the community and at home.  
 
The NHS Wales Informatics Service expects to award the contract for this system in December 2014. The Welsh Government, through 
the Project Board, will seek assurances about commitment to take up of this new system by Health Boards and local authorities and 
timescales and arrangements for promoting optimal roll out and use.  

P
ack P

age 91



7 

 

 

 Recommendation 

R8 Boards of NHS bodies receive limited information about the performance of primary and community services across their organisation 
and where information is available it is not always brought together effectively to provide a much needed perspective.  In order to 
strengthen Board reporting we recommend that: 

 Health Boards develop a more comprehensive approach to reporting performance to the Board that brings together information 
on both primary and community care services, including information on the demand and uptake of services, the impact of 
services on patient outcomes linked to the actions in the Together for Health delivery plans, patient experience, service quality 
and safety, service costs and the overall shift in care from hospital to primary and community care. 

  
WG Response 
Accept  
 
Health Boards are taking collective action in 2014-15 to agree a common and comprehensive set of outcome indicators to measure how 
people are better off as a result of primary and community care. This work will also identify service performance measures on how much 
and how well these services deliver and perform.  
 
 This will allow Health Boards to assure themselves, their population and the Welsh Government of the equity, accessibly and quality of 
locally planned and delivered care and to benchmark their performance. 

 

P
ack P

age 92



Pack Page 93

Agenda Item 7



Pack Page 94



Pack Page 95



Pack Page 96



Pack Page 97



Pack Page 98


	Agenda
	2 Papers to note
	3 Senior Management Pay: Evidence Session 6
	WAO memo

	6 Management of Chronic Conditions: Consideration of the Welsh Governments response to the Wales Audit Office Report
	7 The Welsh Government's location strategy: Consideration of the Welsh Government's response to the Wales Audit Office Report

